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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

UDIN: 2540521980ENII36TE

To the Members of PNC Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

DOpinion

We have audited the IND AS Financial Statements of PNC Triveni Sangam Highways Private
Limived [the “company”™), which comprizes of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the
statement of Profit and Loss including statement of Other Comprehensive Income, and
statement of cash flows and Statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so reguired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted In India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss including Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income , and Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infarmation,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for The Audit of Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under
the prowislons of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reqguirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors §s responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the Director's report but does not include the Financial Statemertis .
and our auditor's report thereon. 15
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Dur opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
nat expriess any form of assurance conclusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the Financlal Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so0, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Financlal Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a2 material misstaternent
of this other Information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The comipany’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section of 134(5)
of the companies “act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsiblility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other jrregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financlal statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, 8s applicable matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no reafistic alternative but
to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for Audit of Financial Statements

Dur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Fnancial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reazonable azsurance i3 a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud er error
and are considered material if, individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial
Statements.

We give in "Annexure A" a detailed description of Auditor's responsibilities for Audit of4T
Financial Statements, '




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order,2020{"the order”}issued by the
central Government of Indla in terms of the sub section [11) of the section 143 of the
act, we give in the Annexure B, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and
4 of the arder.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b, In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have bean kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

. The Balance Shaet and the statement of Profit and Loss Including statement of Other
Comprehensive [ncome, and statement of cash flows and Statement of changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information dealt with in this
repart are in agreement with the books of accounts.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with of the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

e. On the basis of the written representations recefved from the directors as on
March3 1, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (1) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial controls over financial
reparting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in Annexure C.

g With respect to the other matters to be Included in Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its IND AS financial statements, if any.

il.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iil, There were no amounts which were reguired to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. This clause is omitted.




1)

2)

3)

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested [ either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities]"Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest Iin other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company[“ultimate beneficiary”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
an behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries;

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed In the notes to accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity[ies), including forelgn
entities{"Funding Parties”) with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company(“ultimate beneficlary™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiarias; and

Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause (1) and [2)
contain any material mis-statement.

The company has not declared or pald any dividend during the year,

. As per information and explanations given and based on our examination, which

include test checks the company has used accounting softwane for maintaining its
books of account which has a feature of recording awdit trial (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all the transactions recorded in the
software .Further ,during the course of our audit we did not come across any
instance of audit trial feature being tampered with ,and the audit trial has been
preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention,

For RMA & Associates LLP

M.No. 40521
Date: 19-05-2025
Place of Signature: Agra



“Annexure A" to the Independent auditer's report on even date on the financial
statements of PNC Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited for the year ended March 31,
2025.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Fnancial Statements,
whether due to fraud -or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting @ material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, a5 fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the owverride of
internal contral.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

# Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basls of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertalnty exists refated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as 8 going concern. IFf we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, If such disclosures are inedequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a gofng concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

For R A & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants




“Annexure C° to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the financial
statements of PNC TRIVENI SANGAM HIGHWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended
March 31, 2025.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (I} of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 [“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of PNC TRIVENI
SANGAM HIGHWAYS PRIVATE LIMITED as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of
the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls.

The Comparmy's management |s responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on these responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, Including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of rellable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Mote”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an awdit of Internal Financial
Controls and issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Dur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of
the internal financial controls system over finencial reporting and their operating
effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

over financial reporting.

10




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial contrel over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

{1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

[2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reparting

Because of the inherant limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
Including the possibility of collusion or improper management owverride of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial

controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial contrals over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025.

Date: 19-05-2025
Place of Signature: Agra
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PNL Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
CIN AM5203DL201TPTCI2TETE
Balance Shaat as at March 21, 2025

[T In Lakhs)
As at As at
B M March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
{1  Mon Current Assets
[a} Property, Plant & Equipments 2 71.82
{B) Financial Assets
{if  Service Concession Recelvables 3 Fic B 7 85,615.58
() Other Mon Current Assets 4 1.548.07 10.626.26
Sub Total {Mon Current Assats] 81,330.21 9624185
i2) Current Ascats
[a) Financial Assets -
{if Trece Recewables 5 #,121 90 5,058,232
i} IwESTMEnTs B - 543258
{il] Cach and Cash Equivalents ) | 8.687.98 1974
(W) Other Bank Balance 1.2 3,216, 00 1525200
[bi Dther Current Assets g 826.07 60383
Sub Total (Current Assets) 1E,8251.94 12,649.77
Total Assets o8 182.15 1,08,891.62
(1) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(8] Equity Share Capital g 0,823.00 9,5410.00
(b} Other Equity 10 1.294.4% 7154.79
Sub Total (Equity) 11,117.4% 10,294.79
(2) LIABILUTIES
Mon - Current Liabilities
[a} Financial Liabilitied
{i} Borrowings 11 76,178.13 79,594.55
[b) Provisions 111 12 9% -
Sub Total [Mon Current Liabilities) F6,191.09 75,598.55
{3)  Current Liabilitles
{a} Financial Liabklitkes
(i Borrowings 12 505735 6, 19830
[ii) Trade Payables 13 226258 10,771.43
fiii] Other Financiel Uabilites 14 633.60 GEL5T7
(b] DOther Cwrrent Liakilities i5 188 19806
fe] Provision 16 1.908.16 116791
Sub Total [Current Liabilities) 10,873.56 1B,987.27
Total Equity & Liakilities 86,182.15 1,08,831.62

Summary of Material Accounting Policies Information 1
The sceampaniing notes 1 te 34 farm integral part of the Financlal statements
In verms of our report of even date attached
For and on Behalf of the Board of Directars
PMC Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited

For RMA & Associates LLP Q—-"

vardhan Jaln Tallwri Raghupati Rao
Managing Director Director
= i 2 FA DiM: 05106124 DIM: 01207205
D o g
M.No. 405213 I daln Mishta Mishra
Date:19.05.2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Sacratary

Place: Agra PAN- AGHPIS2ZEL M. No-38952




PHC Triveni 5angam Highways Private Limited
CIN :U452030L201TPTCIZTETE
Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

(T in Lakhs]
Year endod Year ended
gt NOtes|  Mrarch31,2025 | March31,2024
I |Revenue from Operatans i7 1201124 1748280
Il |Other Income 18 435.04 183.03
[T} Total Income | k11 } 12.445.28 17,665.83
IV |Expenses ;
Finance Cost 19 5,391.51 6,712.70
Depreciation & Amartization Expenses 2 10.66
Other Expenses 20 3. 59285 763847
Total Expenses [IV) 5,995.03 14,351.12
V |Profit}{Loss) Before Tax {111-1¥) 2,451.25 331471
V1 [Tax Expense ;
Current Tax 1,900.79 116781
Tax for Earlier Years 10,76 {55.67]
Daferred Tax - -
Tax Expense 1,911.55 1,112.33
VI |Prafitf [Loss) for the Period [ V- V1) £39.70 2,202 48
Wil Other Comprehensive Incoms
({1} Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss . =
(i} Income Tax Relating o above items 2 -
¥ |Tatal Comprehensive incame for the Period [ VI + VIN) £39.70 2,102 48
Earning Per Equity Share
Basic & Diluted [¥) 21 0.55 238
Summary of Material Acoounting Policies Information i

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form integral part of the Financial statements

In terma of our report of even date attached

For RMA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accoun e

M.Mo. 405219
Datw:19.05,2025
Place: Agra

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
PMEC Triven! Sangam Highways Private Limited

d -
Harshvardhan Jain Talluri Raghupati Rag
Managing Director Director
DiM: 05146124 DiIN; 01207205
L

" :
lain Nizhta Mishra
Chiefl Financial Officer Company Secratany
PAN- AGKPIS22BL M.Ne-39952




PN Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
CIN UES203DL 201 TPTCIZTETE
Statement of Cash Flow For The Year ended on March 31, 2025

[T in Lakhs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2025 arch 31, 2024
A, Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Met Profit f[Loss) Before Tax & After Exceptional iterms 2.351.25 3.314.71
Adpustmant for
Finamoe Cast 6,391.51 B FLLTD
Depraciation 1iL66
Intarest Income {215.65] [14.84)
[Gain}floss on Sale of Investmants {25600 (152.37}
[Gain i an Fair Valuation of Investments 1661 [16.02)
Em&Fmﬁi E ’E Bafore 'IHHHE Capital Changes 8.418.38 584438
Adjustmant of Changes In Working Capital i
Increase/[Decrease] in Trade payabdes (E.508.85) (%.330.593)
Increase/[Decrease] in Other Currant Liabilitses (196.18) [416.88)
Increasey(Decrease] in Mon Cusrent Lisbilities L «
Increase/[[ecrease] in Other financial Lizbilitkes [27.98) [482.84)
increase/[Decrease] in Trade Receivables 936,33 [2,493.10)
Increase/[Decrease] kn Non Cierent Assets 14,983 46 13,344,168
Increasd/[Deocrease] in Other Bank Balance [i,Hl.Dﬂil {1,525.00)
Increase/(Decreace] in Cufrent fgsets [222.23) {37.13)
Increasef[Decreaze] in Provisions 75321 BER.7E
| Cash Generated from/{used) from Operating Activities 14,445.14 8,77TL42
Direct Tases Paid i1,811.55)] {1,112.23)]
| Cash [used in }J From Eaﬂni Activitles Before Extraordinany [bems [A) 12,533.59 8,659,119
B. | Cash Flow from Investing Activities
imvestmants Purchased (7.970.00)| [31,204.37))
Irvestrmeants Sold 13,622.37 16,891.59
Purchase of Fixed Assets [82.48)] :
interest Incom:a 213.65 14.64
Mt Cash | used in) / from Investing Activithes [8) EI‘.FIE.H {4,2597.74
c. iCash Flow from Financing Activities
Issue of Share Capital 283.00 765,00
Loans Aaiied 2,0:00.00 5,600,00
Loan Repayment {5,826.37) (6,416.55)
Procesds From Unsecured Loan £73.00 T35.00
Interpst Expansa [6,391.51) 6,684.33)
| Met Cash [ used in) / from R Activities [C) 8, 660,85)] s.mn.n!{
| Net Cash Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents [A+B+C) 8,658.25 1,639.43)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of tha Year 2574 1,669.17
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at the End of the year 8,687.98 23.74 |
The eccompanying notes 1 ta 34 form integral part of the Financial statements
In terms of our report of even date attachad
Far ang on Behalf of the Board of Directors

CA RajivBajpai "
Partner

M.No. 405219
Date:19.05.2025

Place: Agra

| Sangam Highwayg Private Limited

Managing Director
DIN: 05146124

-

i
Vishal Jain
Chief Financial Officer
FAN- AGXPISIIEL

s
Talberl Raghupati Reo

Directar
DIN: OLHD7205

'r-.JL

@
Nishta Mishra
Company Secretary
I, No-35553



PHE Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
O UM520300 200 TPTCIZTRTE

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

A. Equity Share Capital (T in Lakhs)
s at Change During the g at
T April 03, 2024 ear March31,2025
SIHIEUIEW Exquiity mamij!-"{! E.Sllmﬁtﬂfﬂs. 10/- Each 9. 540000 ZE3.00 9.A23.00
N ~ (¥ in Lakhs)
Partieu Al at Change During the As at
e jﬂﬂ o1, 2023 Yaar Barch 31, 224
5,54,00,000 Equity !.I‘uru1FH 8,77 .50,000| of Rs. 104- Each 877500 TES.00 5 5400
B. Other Equity [T In Lakhs)
seul Reserves & Surplus
e Retained Earnings Tatal
Balxnoe 3% at Apeil 0], 2024 T54. 79 754.79
|Fn:|ﬂ|; for the Year 539.70 535,70
Other Comprehensive Income - a
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 1,234.49 1,294,459
{Balance as &t March, 2025 1,154.49 1,294.49
__ {¥ in Lakhs)
el Reserves B Surplus
= R Retained Earnings Tatal
Balance as at Aprll 01, 2023 {1,447.68) {1,447.69)
Profit far the Year 2,202 48 1202 48
Other Com shve income - -
| Tatal Comprehensive Income for the Year 754,79 754,79
Balance as at March 31, 2024 754.79 754,75

The accamparying rotes 1 1o 34 form integral part of tha Financal statements
In terms of our report of even date attached

For and on Gehalf of the Board of Directors

For RMA & Assoclates LLP
Chartered Aotantants

M- M
FRN-OD0STE ,LH}MH--.., 1

" (] % 5,

Partner L
M.No. 305218 . -
Diakte-19.05 2025

Place: Agra

PHC TrivenkSangam Highways Private Limited
Q—v‘"
vardhan fain Talluri Raghupat] Ras

Managing Directar Director

DM 05146124 DIN- 01207205
M @2
Wishal kain PFeistha Mizhra

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
PAN- AGKPISZIEL M. MNo-39952



PHC Triveni 5angam Highways Private LimitedThe Company has been awarded Six Laning of Chakeri to Allahabad of NH-Z From
483687 Km to 628.753 (Design Length 145.066Km) in the State af Uttar Pradesh Under NHDP Phage-' Hybeid Annuity Moda.

1, Bais of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with Indian accounting standards (Ind AS) notified
under sec 133 of the companies act 2013 (tha Act) read with Companies {Indian accounting standard) Rules, 2005 and other
relevant provision of the Act and rules framed thereunder,

The Financial staternents have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial assets & Liabilities measured at
fair value.

The financial statements are presented in fndian rupees (INA) with value rounded off 1o the nearest lakhs with two decimals,
thereof, except otherwise indicated.

2. Significent Accounting pollces adopted by company in pregaration of financial statements

2.1 Property, plant and equipment

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
acmumulated impairment losses, If any. Such cost Includes the cost of repladng part of the plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for leng-term constructhon projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
reguired to be replaced at intervals, the company depreciates them separately kased on their spedific useful lives, The carrying
amount of the replace part accounted for as a separate asset previoushy |5 derecognized. Likewisa, when a major inspection B
performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a reglacemant if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. All other repalr and maintenance cost are recognized In the statement of profit and loss when incurned. The present
value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use Is indluded in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on written down value basls as per the rate derived on the basis of
wseful life and methad preseribed under schedule-1l of the eompanies Act, 2003,

The residual values, useful lives and metheds of depreciation of preperty, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there |5 any indication of
impairment based on internal fexternal factors. An asseft is treated as impaired when the carmying amount exceeds its recoversble
valug. The récoverable amount is the greater of the asset's net selling price and value In use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to the present walue wiing & per-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and risks specific to the assets. An impairment less is charged to the statement of profit
and loss in the wear In which an asset is identified as impaired. After impalrment, depreciation is provided on the revised carmylng
amount of the asset over its remaining wsehd fife, The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting pericds |s reversed by
crediting HE _I"I'H.‘I‘I-I of profit and 1055 if thers has beena change in the estimate of recoverable amount.




2.2 Service Concession Agreements

The Company constructs & upgrades infrastructure (construction or upgrade services) used to provide a public service and
gpefitis and maintains that Infrastrucure [operation services) for a specified period of time.,

These arrangements may include Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful
life. Under Appendix C to Ind AS 115 - Service Concesslon Arrangements, these arrangements are accounted for based on the
nature of the consideration. The Financial asset model is used to the extent that the aperator has an wnconditional contractual
right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services. If the company
performs more than one serviee [lLe construection or upgrade services and operathon services) under & single contract or
arrangement, consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services dellvered,
when the amounts are separately identifiable. -

In the financial asset madel, the amount due frorm the granter meets the identification of the receivable which is measured at lair
walue, It 5 subseguently measured at amortized cast. The amount indtially recognized plus cumulative interest on that amaunt is
calculated using the effective Interest method. Any asset carmied under concession agreements & derecognized on disposal or
wihen no future economic benefits are expected from Its future use or disposal or when contractual right to the financal assets

explres,

Revenue related to SCA:
Revenue related to construction under a service concession arrangement is racognizad based on the stage of completion of the
wrork performed.

2.3 Revenue recognltion

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow and the revenue can be redlably
measwred, Revenue i meaiured ai the feir value of the constderation recefved or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government except to the extent stated
athanaise,

The company has recognized Finance kwcome on the outstanding balance of trade recevables as a part of revenue from
operations.

Constriction Revenue for details refers to S3CA note,

2.4 Interest Income
For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interést income
is recorded using the eflective interest rate (EIR), Interest income is included in finance income n the statement af profit and loss.

2.5 Tanes on Income

Current Tax

The income tax expenses or credit for the period is the tax payable only current period’s taxable income based on the applicabie
income tax rate adjusted by changes and deferred tax assets and labllitles attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
lases. The current tax charge |s calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting

period,

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax ks provided in full, using the balance sheet approach on termporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabdlities and their carrying amaouents for financial statements at the reporting date, Deferned tax is determined using tax rates that

hzve been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax assets is realized or the deferred tax [kabilithes is setded.

amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
i taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized, Unrecognized
h': as3ets Wre re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that

tﬂawEnﬂE uﬂ]ﬂl:ru the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Y .-:.J.
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Dieferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside pralit or loss [either in other comprehensive
income or in equity}, Daferred tan tems are recognized [n correlation o the underlying transaction either in OC1 or directly in
eguiry.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax (labiities are offset i a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabllities and the deferred taxes relate vo the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognized as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that the company bill pay normal income tax during the specified period. such asset |s reviewed at each balance sheet date and
the carrying amount of MAT credit asset is written downto the extend there is no longer the convindng evidence to the effect
thiat the company bill pay normal income tax during the specified period .

2.6 Foreign currency transactions

The company’s financial statements are presented in INR which is also the company's functional cwrrency. Foreign currency
transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency. Using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
At each balance sheet dabe, foreign currency monetary itams are reported using the dosing exchange rate. Exchange differences
that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet dabte or the compamy's monetary items at the
closing rate are recognized as income of expenses in the period in which they arise, Non-monetary items which are carried at
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reparted using the exchange rate at the date of transaction,

2.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cach and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and other short term highly liguid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less that are readlly convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
Nit of outstanding bank overdralts as they are eonsidered an integral par of the company’s cach managemeant,

2.8 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are caloulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharehalders (aftar
deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by tha weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted camings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholdars and the weighted average number of shares putstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potentlal equity shares except when the results would be antidilutive.

1.9 Provisions, Contingent lkabilities and contingent assets

Provitions

Prowisions are recogrized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive] as & reswlt of 3 past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statemaent of profit and loss,

If the effect of the time value of money i material, peovisions are discounbed wsing a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the labiity. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.

gach reparting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates, i it is no longer probable that
bodying economic benefits will be required to setthe the obligation, the provision &5 reversed,




Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets

A contingent flability = a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-accurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obdigation whech is not
recogniped because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be reguired to settle the obligation. A contingent Habdlity
also arses in extremely rare cases where there is a Eability that cannot be recogrized because |t cannot be measured rellably.
Infarmation on contingent liabilities & disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying econemic benefits is remote,

A contingent asset i a possible asset that arises from the past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the ocowrrence or
nen-occurrence of one or mere wncertain future evends not within the control of the company, Contingent assets are not
recopnized but are diselozed in the financial statements.

Provishoens, contingent [iabilitles, eontinpent assets are reviewed ol each reporting date.
2.10 Sales/ value added taxes pald on acqulsition of assets or on Incurring expenses

When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or senvioes |5 not recoverable from the taxation authority, In which casa, the tax
pald is recognized as part of the cost of acqulsitien of the asset or as part of the expense (tem, as applicable- When recefvables
and payables are stated with the amount of tae included, Thenet amount of tax recoverable from, or paysble to, the taxation
authority Is Included as part of recelvables or payables in the balance sheet.

Z.11 Borrowing Costs

Bormowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, consiruction or praduction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All othar borrowing costs are
enpensed in the period in which they occur, Bomrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity Incurs in connection
with the bormowng of funds. Borrowing cost also Indudes exchange differences to the extent reganded as an adjustiment 1o the
borrowing costs,

2.12 Employee benefits

Prowident Fund: The contribution to provident fund is in the natwre of defined contribution plan. The Company makes
contribution to statutory provident fund in accordance with the Employees Provident Fund and Miscellanecas Provisons Act,
1852 The contribution paid or payable is recognized as an expense in the period In which serelces are renderned,

Gratuity [Funded): Gratulty is in the nature of defined benefit plan. The cost is determined wsing the projected unit credit method
with actuarial valuation being carried at cash at each Balance Sheet date by an independent actuary, The retirement benefits
obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the present value of defined benefit obligation as adjusted for recognized
past service cost Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the other comprehensive income for the period in which they
CCOuT,

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering services are classified as short term employes benefits.
Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives ete., and the expected cost of bonus,
ax-gratia are recognized during the period in which the employee renders related sendee.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized a3 an expense when employees have rendered the
service entitiing them to the contribution.




Financials Assat

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets gre recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The company
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All financial assets are recognized initizlly at fair value plus
tranzaction costs that are directly attributable to the acguisition of the financlal asset except for financlal essets classifled as falr
value through profit of loss,

Subseguent measurament
For the purpose of subseguent measurerment, financizl asets are clazified In three categories;
{1} Financlal Asset at amortized cost .

[il)Financial Asset at Fair Value through OC1 (PUTOCH)
(liiFrnancis Asset at Fair value through PRL [FYTPL)

The subtequent measurement of financsl accet depends an their elasdification, The casification depends on the company’s
businews madel for managing the financisl aieets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial Asset at amortized cost

Financial Asset’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
[a] The assetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
[b) Cash flows represent solely for repaymant of principal and intarest,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequantly measured at amortized codt using the effective interadt rate |EIR)
methaod. Amortized cost is caloulated by taking into account any discount or prémium on acquisition of &sset and fees or costs that
are zn integral part of the EIR; Income from these financial assets i included in interest income using the effective interest rate
method.

Financial Asset at Fair value through OC1 (FVTOCH)
‘Financial Asset’ is clascifled as at the FYTOC! if both of the following criteria are maet
{a] The objective of the business model Is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
[b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent salely for repayment of principal and intenest. Financial Asset induded within
the FVTOC! category are measursd initially a5 well as at each reporting date at fair walue. Falr value movements are
recagnized in the other comprehensive incorme [OO),

Financial Assot at fair Value through PEL
FYTPL is a résidusl categary for Fingncial Assets. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criverla for categorzation &5 at

amortized cost or &5 FYTOCI, is classified as at FYTPL

In addition, the company may elect to designate a Financlal asset, which otherwlse meets amortized cost or FYTOC! criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only If dolng so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistenty
{referned to as ‘accounting mismateh’),

Equity Instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind A5 109 are measured at fair value. The company may make an Irrevocable efection to
presaent in other comprehensive income subseguent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument
by-instrument basis. The cassification is made on initial recognition and |5 ifrevocabie.

if the group decdes to dassify an egquity Instrument as at FYTOCL, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the LI

De-recopnition of Financial asset
& financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financal assets] is primarily
derecognized whese——-

il 'hﬁrﬁhﬁlve{ash flews from the asset have expired, or
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i) The company has transferred its rights to recefve cash flows from the asset
i} The company retains the contractual rights te received cash flows from the financial asset but assumes & contractual
abligation to pay cash flows to one or more recipiants,
Where the company has transferred the asset, the company evaluastes whether it has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets, in such cases, the financal asset is derecognized, Where the entity has not
ransferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial aszet, the financial assetis not derecognized.

Whera the antity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ewnership of financial
assets, the financial asset is derecognized if the company has not retained control of the asset, Where the company has retains
cantrol of the financisl geset, the asset is continwed to bevacognized to the extent of continuing invalvement in the financial asset.

Impalrment of financial assets

In par ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit lass (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on
the following financial assets and credit risk exposure;
{a) Financial assets that are measured ab amartized cost e loans, debt, securitles, deposits, trade receivables and bank
Belancec,
ib] Finarclal assefs that are measured as at FYTOC
{e} Leaszerecetvables under Ind AS 116
{d} Trade receivables or any contractual right fo receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions
that are within the scope of ind As 115 [referred to as “Service Concessional Recelvable™ in these illustrative financial
Etatements.
{e] Loancommitments which are not measured as at FVTFL
{1} Financial gusrantee contracts which are not measured as at PVTPL

For recognition of impairment Joss of finandal assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a
significant increase In the credit sk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used o
provide for impalrment loss. If credit risk has increased significantly, letime ECL i weed,

In & subsequent pericd, if credit quality of the instrument improves such that there |s no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, than the company reverts 1o recognizing mpairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the espected life of & financial
instrumaent,

Financlal Labilites
Inltial recognition and measurement

Financigd liabilithes are recognited when the company Decomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Instrument. The
comparny determines the dassification of finandal liability at initial recognition. All financlal llabllitkes are recognized initially at fair
value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial liability except for financial liabilities
classified as fair value through profitor oss,

Subsequent Measuremant
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial Eabilities are classified in two calegories;

Financial Liahilities at Amortized Cost
Alter initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrewings are subsequently measured at amortized cost wsing the EIR

method, Gaing and losses are recognized in the statement of profib or less when the ligbllities are derecognized as well as through
the EIR amertization ortized et is caloulated by teking into account eny discount or premium on acquisition and fees




Financial lkabilities measured at fakr value through profit or loss

Financial iabilities at fair value through profit or loss include finanda! abilities held for trading and financial liabllities designated
upon mitial recognition as at fair value throwgh profit or loss, Finencial abilities sre classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpase of repurchasing b the near term. Financial labdlities st falr value through profit or loss are carried in the
sratement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair valve recognized in finance income or finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss,

De-racognition

A financial liability is derecopnized when the obligation under the Eability 5 discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liakility s replaced by another from the same lemder on substantially different terms, or the terms of an exdsting liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the odiginal Rability and the
recognition of a new Hability, The difference in the respective carmying amounts & recagnized in the statement of profit or loss.

Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at falr value at cach reporting date.

Fair valus i the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to transler a llabllity In an orderly transaction batvween market
participants at the measurernent date. The fair valve measurement i3 based on the presumption that the transaction to sell tha
assek or transfes the Rability takes place elther:

- In the princlpal market for the assat or liability, or
- bni the sbsence of @ principal market, in the most advantageois market Tor the asset or [Eabiliny.

The principal or most advantageous market miust be accessible to the company.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial a4set takes (nto account @ market participant’s ability to generate economic benelits
by using tha asset in its highest and best use or by sefling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest

and best wse.

The entity uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the droumstances and for which sulficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant cbservable Inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable Inputs.

Al assets and liab#ities for which fair value & measured or disclosed in the financlal statements are categorized within the fair
vabue hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level Input that |s significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1) Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for tentical assets os liabillties

Level 2: Waluation techaigues for which the lowest level input that |s significant to the falr value measurement i directly or
indirectly abservable

Level 3: Valuation technlques for which the lowest level Input that Is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For the purpase of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets & liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristhcs and the risks of the asset or [Fability and the level of tha fair value higrarchy as explained abone,

2.14 Government Granls
Gowernment grants (except those existing on transition date] are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
wll e received and all attached mndlhnns will be complied with, When lhu u;nnt rl:limll- to an expense iem, il is recognized &5




When the company receives grants of non=monetary assets. The asset and the grant are recorded at falr value amounts and
refeased to the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the
undertying asset by equal annual installments.,

3. Significant estimates, judgments and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requines management 1o exercise judgment in applying the company’s accounting policies.
it alsa reguires the use of estimated and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, Income and expenses
and the accompanying disclosures including disclature of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underiying assurnptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, with revisions recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. -

3.1 Contingencies and Commitments

in the normal course of busingss, contingent labilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the company, Potential
liabities that have & low probability of enystaliving or are very difficult te quantity reliably, are treated as contingent Habilides.
Such fiabilities are disdlosed in the notes, if any, but &re not provided lor in the financial statements. There can be no assurance
regarding the final outeome of these lepal proceedings.

3.2 Impairment testing
i Judgment s also required in evaluating the likeliheod of collection of customer debt after revenue has been recognized.,
This svaluation risguires estimates o be made, including the level af provision to be made o amodnts with uncertaln
recovery profiles Provisions are based on historical trends in the percentage of debts which are not recovered, or on
mone details reviews of individually significant balances,

i, Determining whether the carrying amount of these assets hes eny indication of Impalrment also requires judgment. If an
indication of impairment & identified, further judgment i required to assess whether the carrying amount can be
supported by the net present value of future cash flows forecast to be derived from the asset. This forecast invalves cash
flow projections and selecting the appropriate discount rate,

3.3 Taues
a, The company's tax change is the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges. The calculation of the company’s total
tax charge necessarily involves a degree of estimation and judgment in respect of certain items whose tas breatment
cannot be finally determined wetil resolution has been reached with the relevant tax suthority or, 25 appropriate, through
a formal legel process.

b.  Accruals for tax contingencies require management to make judgments and estimates In refation to tas audit Bsues and
EXEOELFES.

c. The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether Itis more lkely than not that sufficient and suitable taxable
profits will be avaflable in the future against which the rewersal of temporary differences can be deducted, ‘Where the
termporary differences are refated to losses, the availabiity of the losses to offset against forecast taxable profits is alio
considered. Recognition therefore involves judgment regarding the future finandal performance of the particular legal
entity or Tax Company in which the deferred tax asset has been recognized,

3.4 Fair value measurement

The fair value of finandal instruments that are not traded in an active market s determined using wafuation technigues. In
apphying the vahation technigues, management makes maximum use of markat Inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that
are, as Far as possible, consistent with observable data that market particpants would use in pricing the instrument. Where
applicable data s not observable, management uses its best estimate about the asumptions that market participants would
make. These Eiﬂnqﬁt.mﬁl_ vary form the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's length transaction at the reporting
date. For details ﬂu:l:j‘r_mfmpﬂnm {Refer note-23)
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PMC Trivenl Sangam Highways Private Limited

CIN :UA52030L2017PTCI2T6TE

Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

L Property, Plant & Equipments

{¥ In Lakhs)

Particulars

Plant &
Equipments

Vechicle

Office Equpment

Total

| Gross Carrying Value

At April 01, 2024
Addition During the Year
|Cizposal / Adjustments

19.11

(18 )

2148

As At March 31, 2025

19.11

0.17

8248

| Bccumulated Deprociation
At April 01, 2024

Addition During the Year

| Disgrasal f Adjustrments

177

001

1066

As At March 31, 2025

1.77

0.0l

10.66

o s Mapeon 2

as at MageR 3L 2025
57 @/“
L

=

1

17.34

&g ¥

0.16

T1.82




PN Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
CiIN U452030L 201 TPTCI2TETE
Motes to The Fnancial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 3: Mor- Curment Financial Assers

(¥ in hakha)

A &5t AL Bt

Particulars
Misrch 31, 2025 Barch 31, 2024
| Services Concession Racasvablas 73, 71233 E54615.58
Tatal| 73,712.32 B5,615.58
Mote 4; Other Mon Current Assets

(¥ in kakhs)

Az at Az at

Particulars
Recoverahle from Government Autharities

March 31, 2035 March 31, 2024

Acvance Tax & Tax Deducted at Source 285158 2,214.15
GET Input Tax Crediy 4,694,149 841211
P Total] 7,546.07 10.626.26

Ly P
A, o
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PHC Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
CON S R0B0L 2 TPTCIZTETE

Notes vo The Financlal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 5 Trade Heceivables

(¥ in lakhs)

Particulars

A at
harch 34, 2025

Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good
National Highways Autharity of India

4,1:1.90

Az at

March 31, 2024

5,058.22

Total

4,121.94

5,058,232

% Im lakins)

Trade Recsivables Agelng Scheduls

Pericd

As at
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

Undisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good

Less than & Moths
& Moths t0 1 Year
1 ¥ear to 2 Years
2 Years 1o 3 Years
More than 3 Years

4.121.80

5.058.22

Tatal]

|Undisputed Trade Receivables- Which Have Significant Increase

Less than 6 Moths
& Moths 1o 1 Year
1 Year tp 2 Years

1 Years 1o 3 Yaars
Mare than 3 Years

4,121.90

E.'Il_il-.-]l*

Tatal|

|Undizputed Trade Receihvables- Credit Impaired

Less than & Moths
& Moths 10 1 Year
1 Yearto 2 Years
2 Years to 3 Years
More than 3 Years

Total]

|Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good

Less than & Moths
& Moths 1o 1 Year
1 ear o 2 Years
2 Yiesars 1o 3 Yaars
Moare than 3 Years

Disputed Trade Receivables- Which Have Significant Increase

Lexs than & Moths
& Maths 10 1 Yaar
1 ¥earto 2 Yeard
& Years to 3 Years
Mare than 3 Years

Totall

|Disputed Trade Receivables- Credit Impalred

Less than & Moths
B MMoths 1o 1 Yaar
1 Vear to 2 Years

I Years to 3 Yaars
Mare than 3 Years

PN

Total]

Pk ™ et
(=] Hewie— "ol /

L=
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FNC Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
CiN U45203DL2017PTC3 27676
HMotes to The Ananclal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 6 Investments

% b lakhs)
Asat Az at
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
IrvESEmEnt i Miutual Funds - 543793
- 5452.98
(¥ in kakhs)
A5 at A at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Aggregate Book Value of guated investments - 5,416.96
Apgregate rarket value of quated mvestments - £.43398
Apgregate book value of unguoted imvestments 2
| Aggragate amaunt of impadrment on valua of irvestments =
Note 7.1: Cash and Cash Equivalants
(¥ in bakhs)
AL a5t s at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash and Cash Equivalents-
Cash in Hand 011 -
Balances with Banks
Curfent Accounts B,GE7 .87 I5.74
868798 974
Mote 7.2; Dther Bank Bakance
T im bakhs)
s art Al pt
March 31, X025 march 31, 2024
Other Bank Balance
Term Deposits | Original maturity having more than 3 Months Less than
12 Months) 3,216.00 1,525.00
3216.00 1,525.00
Note B : Other Current Assets
[% In kakhs}
A at Agat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Prepaid Charges 0.58 -
Accrued interest on FOA 65.49 -
Lecuriny Dapiosit 37,13 aria
Advanpe to Vendors 2567 -
E97.20 SEE. 1D
B26.07 &03.83




PHC Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
CiM L5203 DL20LTPTCI2TETE
Motes 1o The Mnaancial Stavements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 3; Share Capital

(2 in lakhs)
As at AL at
Farpenan March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Authorized
g,90,00,000 {P/Y 9,90,00,000) Equity Shares of T 10/- Each 9,500.00 9,900.00
Isswed, Subscribed & Paid up
9,82,30,000(P/Y 9,54,00,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- Each 9 £23.00 9,540.00
MNotas 9.1
[2) Recondiliation of the Shares Outstanding at the Beginning and at the End of the Year
PArtiulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening 9,.54,00,000 8,77,50,000
Change During the Year 28,300,000 16,.50,000
Closkng 9 B2 50,000 49,54,00,000
{b) Details of Shares Held by Shareholders Holding More Than 5% in the Company:
Mame of Shareholder's YarEaded Much 3L 92
No of Shares % Holdings
FNC Infratech Limited 10 -
FNC Infra Holdings Limited 9.82,29,920 100
Name of Promoters Yeur Ended March 31, 2024
No of Shares % Holdings
PMC Infratech Limited 10 -
PMC Infra Holdings Limited 9.53 55,990 100

Rightts and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of T 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote
per share hald. in case any dividend is proposed by the 8oard of Directors the same Is subject to the approval of the shareholders

in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except In the ease of Interim Dhadend.

There are no bonus sharesfshare bBsued for consideration other than cash and share bought back since the company

incorposated.

In the event of liqmdutlr.m of the company, the holder of the equity share will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the

compa
the stﬁmhulders '_-,

@

I;ﬁ.'ur ﬂmﬂumhulbm of preferantial amaunt. The distribution will be in proportion to number of eguity shares held by

K @




PME Traveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
CIN :U452030L M 7PTCI27ETE
Motes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 10 : Dther Eguity

- Retained Earnings X In lakhs}
A5 at Az at
Pasticulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Opeaning Balanee 754,70 {L447.69)
Mt Prafit for the Year £39.70 2,202 48
E.Iminl Balance 1,294.49 754,79
Retained Earnings

This {.uﬂ'@uj?tqmpmﬁ undistributed profit after faxes.
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PMC Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
Cin 5203001 TFTCARTERE
Notes to The Fnancial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 11: Borrowings
[¥ in lakhs)
As at AS at
Eee . March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Secured
Term Loan [Combined) T1.807.42 T6,631.85
Less: Current Maturity of Lang-Term Loan Debts {Refer Mote Na.11] 6,067.35 B, 198.30
B6,740.13 Ti,434.55
Unsecured
Unsecured Loan from Related Party* 8,436.00 9,165,00
Total| 76,178.13 79,598.55

*Refer note 28

Nature of security and terms of repaymaents for lang term borrowings:-
[A) Mature of Security -

(i} First chasge on all the Company’s immovable assetsf movable assets | except project assets), IF any , both present and future.

[il} First charge cver all revenue and receivabies of the Company's from the project or obherwise.

fiii} First charge over the rights, tile and interest of the Company's related to the profect from all contracts, insurances, licenses, in to and

other all project agreement.

{fw} First charge over all the banks accounts of the Company incheding the Excrow accounts and the sub sccounts.
{w} First charge on all intangibles of the borrowes both presert & future save and axcept the project assets
[wi} A first charge by way of assignment or otherwise creation on security interest in all the right, title, interest, benefits, dalms, and

Wil Pledge of shares held by the prometer and or ary other perion agEregating to 51%..

Mote- The aforesaid shall be collectively referred to the "Security', The above security will rank pari passu interse amongst the Lenders,

Collateral Security- NIL
Persomal/Corporate Guarantes- NiL

(B} Terms of Eepayment-

() HOFC Bank Limited (Load Bank)

(i) 25 unegual half yearly Instalments commencing after 7 months from date of Scheduled commercial operstion date .

(i} Rate of Interest - 1 year MOLR plus 0.10% paa. [ Currently 8.30% p.a.)

(i) Central Bank

{1} 25 unegual half yearly Instalments commencing after ¥ months from date of Scheduled commencial operation date .

(i} Rate of Interest - 1 year MCLR plus 0.15% p.a_ [ Currently 9.15% p.a)

(liijPunjab Mational Bank (E- Oriental Bank of Commerce]

(i} 25 unegual half yearly instalments commencing after ¥ months from date of S5cheduled commercial operation date .

(i} Rate of Interest - 1 year MOLE plus D05 poa. | Currently 8.40% p.a)

[iv]indlan Bank (E-Allehabad Bank)

{1} 25 unegqual hall yearly instalments commencing alter 7 manths from date of Scheduled commercial operation date

{Fi) Rate of rterest - 1 year MOLR plus 0.30% poa. [ Currently 8.30% p.a.)

{vjindian Bank

(i} 5 unequal half yearly ingalments commending after ¥ months from date of Scheduled commercial operation date .

{ll] Rate of Interest - 1 year MCLA plus 0.30% pa. | Currently 83086 poa)

(I¥JUCO Bank

(1) 25 wnequal hall yearly instalments commencding after 7 months from date of Scheduled commercial operation date ,

H o

(i) Rate of Interest - 1 year MCLA plus -0,15% p.a, | Currently B.35% p.a.]

[hl']hlilh Mational Bank (E- United Bank of India)

r:: 111 25 unequal half yearly instalments commencing after 7 manths fram date of Scheduled commercial operation date

&

L

(i Rate-of Interest - 1 year MCLR plus 0.05% p.a. | Currently 8.40% pa.)
o |

i e
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PNC Triveni Sangam Highways Brivate Limited

CIN U452 03DL201 TPTOI2TETE

Motes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote-11.1 Prowvisicm

¥ in lakhis)
AL Bl Az at
Particul
.t March 31, 2025 | March 312024
Provisions for Gratety 1565
Prowisions for Leave Encashment 130 a
Total 12.96
Note 12 : Current Bormowings
¥ in lakhs)
AL at ALt
Phriaiac March SL 0TS March 31, 2024
Setuned
Current Maturity of Long-Term Loans Debts 6,067.35 £,198.30
Tatal 506735 5, 19830
Note 13 : Trade Payables
[¥ i lakha)
As at s at
Farticul
TR March 31,2025 |  March 31, 2024
Total cutstanding dues of micre, small and medivm entereprises* - -
Total culstanding dues of creditors other than micro, small and medum 2.061.58 10,771,453
Tatal 2,263.58 10,771.43
1 As aL Ag ar
TR FRiAS Ageing Sehacnie v March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Dt 1 Yaar . =
MM 1 Year to 2 Years
. 2 Years 103 Years -
More than I Years -
Total of MSHE i
Ota 1 Year 2.26258 10,771.43
| 1 Year ko 2 Yeard . -
& Years to 3 Years
hore than 3 Years - -
Total of others 2. 26258 10, 771.43
Oto 1 Year - -
. S 1 Year to 2 Years
o - 2 Yiears to 3 Years -
hicre than 3 Years Ex
Total of Disputed-MSME
Oto 1l Year -
- 1 Yearto 2 Years
Disputed
ol 2 Years to 3 Years >
More than 3 Years -
Testal of Disputed-Others
Hobe 14 : Other Current Flnancial Liablities
[T in Lakhs)
Asat bgat
Partioula
i March 23, 2025 blarch 31, 2024
Salary Payable 2155 1z
Other Payables 14.88 14.88
independent Engineer Fees Payable 457.34 S0E19
Retention Payable to Relaied IJ'H“:: 100.02 123.44
G5T Reterntion .t -:'-.,. 2081 14.04
Audit Fees Payabig A - 0.50
i e bll
_— iy i Total 633.60 66157

*Refer Note 22

@



PNC Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
CIN UAS203DL2017PTCIZTETE

Motes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 15 : Other Current Liabilities

[¥ in baiches)
Asat Asat
Particulars
March 31, 2035 March 31, 2034
Statutory Dues Pavable i858 8.63
Wobllization Advance trom BNHAI - B9.43
Unclaimed cheques - 100.00
Tatal 1.58 198.06
Mede 16 : Prowisions
(T in Lakhs}
Particul A5 at As et
March 31, 2025 March 31, 134
Provision for Intome Tax 1.900.79 116791
PFrovizion for Gratuity 4.15 -
|Provision for Leave Encashmant 532 -
Total| 1,908.16 167.91
HWote 17 Hevenue from Operation
{¥Tin lakhs)
Year endad Yearended March
bt March 31, 2025 31, 2024
Construction Revenus 1.583.52 BE1T.15
Interest Income on Service Concession Recehvable 9.417.71 10,665.585
Todal 12.011.24 17, 483.80
Kote 18: Other Income
[T in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended BMarch
P T March 31, 2025 31, 2024
Interest an Fixed Deposits 21565 14.64
Gain/{Lass] on Redernption of Mutual Funds A5E00 152,37
GainLossjon Faie e inn af Mutual Funds (36.61) 16.02
L A Totall 43504 183,08



PHC Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
CI A5 03 2DLTPTCIZTRTE
Motes 1o The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 19; Firance Cost

(T In lakhs)
Wear ended Year ended March
Faniosen March 31, 2025 31,2024
|lafeil ExpeEndes of Tefim LE&n BAT2TE G.681.32
Imterest Expenses on Mabilization Advance 160 16878
Bank Charges 11.17 14.81
Todal 1.51 FT12.70
Note 20: Other Expenses

{¥ in lakhs)

Year ended Year ended March

P
e March 31, 2025 31, 2024

Construction Expenses® 2,713.35 076D
Budit faes 15D 1.00
Legal & Professicnal 9.0 1587
Electricity Expensa 174.07 15672
Purchasing-Cthers 1187 037
Fep & Maan - Other 0.8z 200
Salary & Wages 20669 1.50
Subrontraciing expanses 26852 18495
Gisesit House Rept 4.52 1.25
Labour Cess 34,37 3915
Other Site Expenses 143 031
Hire Changes 32.15 5T.60
C5R Expenses AT 21.00 -
Miscellaneous Expenses .13 -
Tatal 3,592.85 538,42




PMEC Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
CIN :aS2030L20TITPTCIITETG
Motes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 21: Earning Per Share

Pasticulars Yoar ended ¥ear endad
Marchi 31, 2025 | March 21, 2024
tal Profit!Loss) Available to Equity Sharehciders (T In Lakhs) 23970 1,302 48
b} Weighted Average NMumber of Equity Shares 9,75,31,192 89,2724 580
fc | Mominal Value of Equity Shares (in T) 10.00 10.00
Il:ll Bask and Diluted Earnings Per Share [(a)/(b]] (in T) 0.55 2.38

Mate 313 Operating Segrent Informathon

The Company operates in oaly one segrment, namely “Infrastructure Development on Hybrid Annutty Madel™ hence there are no repartable
segmanis under ind AS-108 "Segment Reporting'. Hence, separate business segmant Infermation is not applicable,

The directors of the company has been entifled as The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Chief Operating Cecision Maker also
monitors the operating results as one sinsgle segment for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and pedformance
assessment and hence, thare are no additional disclosures to be provided ather than those already provided in the financial statements.

|
s s -
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PMC Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
CIN :Ua53030A 201 TPTCIZTETE

motes 1o The Finandal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Wote 23 : Related Party Transactions
A} List of Belated Parties

Parent Entities

Typa

Crwnarship Interest

A5 ak

March 3} 2033

immediate Holding

Asak

March 31, 2024

PRC Infra Moldings Limited 100 1003
Company
[PHC Infratech Limited® Ultimate Holding z
*Holds 10 BEquity Shares.,
{B] Transactions Between Related Parties
The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business during the Year-
[T in lakhs
Year ended Year andad
: Ma of Transaction
i — March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
1 Unsecured Loan Taken
PNC Imfratech Limited 273,04 FA5.00
2 lEPC Combract
PAC Imfratech Limited 485042
3 [Utilivy Shifting Comtract
PHC Infratech Limited 2.593.52 1.947.42
4 I Share Capital issued
PNC infra Haldings Limiited 283.00 TR5.00
5 Hire Charges
PrC infratech Limited 14.49] 57.60
6 Purchase of Assets & Materlals
|F'HE Infratech Limited 25915 031
[C ) Balance Dutstanding at the End of the Year:-
l (% In lakhs)
As at Asat
r M Particula
“ e March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
1  |uUnsecwred Loan
PHC infratech Limited 943500 9.165.00
2 |Trade Payables
1FHEII1friIEd1 Limited 2, 133,50 10,541, 70
3 |Retention Paysble
PNE Infratech Limited 5&.83 108.83
(D) Compensation o Key Managerial Personnel [¥ in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
Sr M MManagerial Persgnnel
: i g March 31,2025 |  march 31, 2024
1|Mizthas Kishra 1.44 1.44

[E} Terms and Conditions

The transactions with the relsted parties are made on term equivalent to those that prevail in srm's length transactions, The assessment Is
under taken each fingncial vﬂ&{;uﬁl examining the financial position of the related party and in the market in which the related party

operates All Du‘l:-ﬁndh‘il: balingedwill be settled in cash.

JOMsIE
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PNC Triven! Sangam Highways Private Umited
CIN L5203 20 TPTCILTETE
Wotes to The Financal Statements for the Year Enged March 31, 2035

Hote 24 : Fair Value Measurement

On Comparisnn by class of carrying amounts and fair value ol the compamy's fimanciad Instruments, the carryging amount of the financial Instruments reasonable approrimates R vl

Fenancial Ingirumenis by Calegory

_ i im Lalkha]
Particulars s 3t March 31, 2025 Az at March 31, 2024
Amortised Cost FAWTPL FvTOCI | Amortised Cost FVTFL FATOC

|Fenancial Assats

Service Corcesslon Receivables 73,712.a2 - - ES 61558

Trade Raceivalies 4,121.90 - - 505827 .

Investments - - - : 543258

Cash and Bank Balances EED!.EI : 1 ml.!'l.'-'#-?ﬂ- L

Total Financlal Assets £9,7358.19 . = 93,238.54 5133.98 e |
Financial Liabilities

Lang Term Barmowings B2 245,48 - - ES, T9T.B5

Trade Payshles 2.262.58 - - 10, 7FLA3

Dther Financial LiabiEties 533.52 : : G587 =

Total Fimamclal LIIHH B5,141.66 " - 57, 230.85 - -

{i] Fair Value Hierarchy

Thiz section explaing the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair vabues of the financisl strumenits thel s measured Bt amorized st and for
which fair values are disclased |In financial statements. To prodde an indication about the reliability of inputs uied in determining fair valwes, the group has
classified its financial Irstrumants into three levels prescrbed undar the accounting standards,

Thee following table provides the Teir value measwement hisrarchy of Comparny's asser and Babilithes, grouped into Level L to Leved 3 as described below -

Leval 1: Quoted {unadjusted] masket prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitles,
Lewel 25 Valuakion techréques for which the lowest level input that ks :.'qlﬂﬂl;.lh‘l:b; the Bair value measuremant |s dirsctly or indirectly ohservalbda,
Lewal 3: valuation techniques for which tha lowest level Input that ks ssgnificant to the fair value measurement is unchearvabla.

3

Mo @

{7 in Laichs)
Falr Valse Measurement using
bl Carrying Value STeriCant Signficant |
March 31, 2005 | Quoted Price in Obserdable Unabservable
fctive Markel Ingurts Impats
[Lewvel 1) {Level 2] [Level 3)
14} Financial Assets and Liabilithes Measured at Amortised Cost for which Fair|
Valoes are Disclosed at March 31, 2035
i} Financial fssets
Larvice Concession Receivables 1371233 - 73.713.32 .
investments = * -
Total| T3,712.31 - 73,7132 -
i} Financial Lishifities ”
Long Term Bornowings B1,245.48
i | Tatal 82,245 4% ' . -




PRC Trivenl Sangam Highways Privato Umitved
City ;L5203 0L201 TRPTCIEITETE
Maotes bo The Financlal Statements for the Yesr Ended March 31, 2028

T in Ladchs)
Fair Value Measurement using
Significant Significant
Particulars ::.:H:Lv::; Guoted price in ohsersable unohiervabie
Active Markot inputs Inputs
(Ll 1) fLewal 2} {Level 3]
[4) Financial Assets and Liabiiities Measured at Amortised Cost for which Fair
Walues are Disclosed at March 31, 3024
i} Financial Assets
Service Corcettion Aecenable BS,615.58 - B5,615.58 .
Irnsastriisnts 543298 5432.58 . :
Tatad| P1,048.56 5432.58 E5,615.58 -
{il} Fimamcial Liskilities
Long Tarm Bommawings BS, TO7.EE BS5,797.85 =
Total | 15,797,805 B5,797.85 =

(i) vabuastion Technigues used to Determing Fair Value

The Commpany maimaing palicies snd procedures to value financial assets or fimancial iabiities wsing the best and moest relevant data avallable. The fair yalues of the
financial assets and Eabilitles are included at the amaunt that would be received bo sell an asset or paid ta transfer & liability i am arderly transacticn between

market parficipants at the messurement date

The Following Method and Assumptions ane wsed to Estimate Falr Values:

The Carrying amounts of trade payables, shoet term borrewings, cash and cagh equivalents, short term depasits/retentions, expenses payable etc. are considered to

B thasir Tair valoe , due 1o their short Eem natuce.

Leng-term fmed-rate and warisble-rate receivables [ bormowings are eveluated by the Company based on parameters such as Infenest rates, specific country risk
factars, credit risk and other risk characteristics. For borrowing lair walue |5 determined by using the discounted cash flow (DCF) mathod wing discount rade that

reflects the ssuer’s bormowings rate. Risk of non-performance for the company is considered to be Insignificant in valuation,

The fair value of trade recetiables, security depesits and retentions are evaluated on parameters such as inferest rate and other risk factors. Falr value Is belng

determined by using t cash flow {DCF)

Financisl assets and [l i;%d ot Fair value and the careyng amaunt is the fair value.
] I

(o] @ )5




PNC Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
CIN :U452030L201TPTCIZTETE
Motes to The Financial Statements for the Yeas Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 25 : FINANCIAL RISK MARNAGEMENT

The Company's principal financid Babillties, athar than dervatives, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose af these fnancial lialdlities 5 te manage
finances for the Company’s operations. The Company principal financisl asset includes loan |, trade and ather recelvables, and cash and short-term deposits that arise directly from

its operations.
The Company's activities are exposed fo Market Risk, Credit Risk and Liguidity Risk,

I. harket Risk
Market risk is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of a financlal instrumeant will fluctuate because of changes In masket prices. Market prices comiprise thres types of
risk: currency rete risk, interest rabe risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity price sk, Financial instrements affected by market risk inclisde loans and
borrowings, depasits, iIrvestmeants, and dertvative financial instruments.

[a) Inierest Rete Risk
Interest rate ritk i company's cath flow and profit on stcownt of movement in market Interest rates. For the company interest risk arises mainly from interest bearing
borrowings which are at fioating rates, To mitigate ntarest rate risk, the company clesely manitors market ik,

i} Interest Risk Exposure (% in Lakhs)
Pariicinrs &5 at March 31, A4 8t March 31,
ariable Rate Borrowings 7180748 75,632 B5

i} Interest Rato Sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate on that porison of barrowing affected. With all other varlable held constant,
thie company's profit before tax ts affected through the impact of change in interest rate of borrowing & follows-

[t in Lakhs)

Increase/Decrease | Effect on Profit
Particul
g in Basis Points Defore Tax
March 31, 202% #50/-50 =R 0d /364, 0
Wlarch 31,2034 15[I||"-5-l] -3511&'353.15
b} Foraign Currency Risk

The Company By nature doss not operates internationallty and as the Company has not obtained any faresgn currency loans and also doesn't have any Torelgn currency rade
payables and foreign recelvabdes outstanding therefore, the company i net exposed to any foreign exchange risk,

fc} Price Risk : f a___'l:-:“‘x
Thin DOATE Y Lo girl ‘ml Fiem veiments in varous sehames ol mutual funds. These nvestments are IH-'EhII E ed i the markst and are beld Tor Lhark

ol tifme. =l
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Credit Risk

Cradlit risk arises from the possibeiity that the counterparty will default on its contraciual obligations resulting & financial loss to the company. To managa this, the Company
periadicslly asiessas the financal relishility of customers, taking Inte sccount the financial conditions, current econamic trends, and analyils of historical bad debts and ageing
of ascounts receivabla,

The company has ondy one trade receivables that a company has are against the the grant to be received, which IS a government authority therefore comipany B not exposed 1o
any credit risk. Credit risk on cash snd cash equivabents is Imited a5 we generally invest in deposits with banks and financial Instiutions with high credit ratings assigned by
irternational and domestic cradit rating agencies,

Liguidity Risk
Liguidity rizk is defined as the risk that compary will net b able to sattle or meet 115 obfgation on time ar at a reasonable price, The Compary”s objecthee 5 to at all fimes
maintain optirmum bevels of lquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company®s management is respansible for liguidity, funding as well as settlement
management. in addition, processes and policies related to such risk are overseen by senis management. Management monitors the company’s net liguidity position thiough
ralling, forecast on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table balew provides details regarding the remaining cantractuad matwrities of financial labilithes at the reporting date based on contractusl undiscounted payments:

(¥ in Lakhs)
tasi Mian More than ong
As wt March 31, 2025 Carrying fmount O Bemand year and less than  More than 3 Years Total
One Year :
Borrowings B,245.448 - 6,067.35 12376835 63,995,780 B2, 24548
Trade Fayablas £,262.58 - 2.262.50 - - 1,162.58
Oither Liakilitins £33.60 : 633.60 . . £33.60
Total E5.141.66 = Iiﬂﬁlﬂ 1217835 iiﬁlﬁ #5,141.66
- (% in Lakhs]
Less than WA Il vre
A5 at March 31, 2024 Carrying Amowni On Demand year and bess than  More than 3 Years Total
Cine Year e
Broarroraineg 5 85.797.85 - £.158.30 1217835 67421120 85,797.8B5
Trade Fayablas 10,771.43 - 1077143 - . 10,771.43
Other Liabilities 661.57 - 66157 - - 66157
Total 97, 230,85 & 17,631.30 1517635 67 421,30 3723085
Mote 26 : Contingent Liabilties and Comeniiments { to the extend not provided for]-
{% in Lakhs}
Asat Asat
i 5 SRR March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
[Eentingent Iluﬁrﬂunkﬁuamﬁﬂlum by Ulibmsate holding Le. PHC infratéch Limited on behalf of the Company) 5,173,060 5 173,00

e Xen @



PMC Trivenl Sangam Highways Private Limited
Cin :UM5203DL2017FTCI2TETE
Motes to The Financial Statements for the ¥Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 27: Capita! Managoment

The primary asjective of the Company’s Capital Managament is 1o maximize the shareholder value and also maintaln an optimal
capital structure to reduce cost af capital, In order to manage the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividend paid 1o sharehalders, return on cagital 1o shareholders, ksee new shares or sell assets to reduce debits,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment in light of changes in economic condition and the
requirements of the financial covenants, if any. The Company monitors cagital wsing a gearing ratio, which |5 net debt divided by
total capital plus debt.

(¥ in Lakhs Excopt Ratio)
Az at As at
sy March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Tatal Borrawings (excluding unsacurad loan taken from related party refer Mote No-22) 721,807 48 76,632.85
Less- Cash & Cash Equivalents 11,303.57 1,554.74
Debt (A] 50,903.51 75,078.12
Equity Share Capital [including wnsecured loan taken from related party refer Note No-22) 18,261.00 18, 705.00
Ciher Eguity 1,754,439 754.79
Total Equity (B) 20,555.45 15,459.79
Dbt to Equity ratio {ASB] 2.96 3.86
Note 28: Concession Arrangements- Main Features
i) Mame of the Concession PNC Triveni Sangam Highways (P) Umited
ii} Description of Arrangements Development of 5 laning of Chakeri to Allahabad of NH-2

from km 483,687 to km 628.753 [Design length 145.066 km)
iri the state of Uttar Pradésh under NHDP Phase-V Hybrid
Annulty Mode.

iif} Skgnificant Term of Arrangements Period of Concession: 15 years from COD
Constructian Period : 910 days
Rgrmuneration: Annuity, Interest, D&M
Investment grant from Concession grantor; Yes
infrastmucture return to grantor at end of Concession : Yes
Investment and renewal obligation: No
Reprising dates- Half yearly for &M basis upen which
rieprising or re negotiation s determined : Inflation price
index as defined in concession agreement.

Note 29: Unsecured loan of ¥ 9438.00 Lakhs taken by the company from related party( Ultimate Parent Company) 5 n lieu of
equity as per terms of Concesslon Agreement dated April25, 2018, which s Interast free.

MNote 30: Details of loan given, investments made and guarantee given covered Ufs 186 of the Companles Act, 2013,

The Company s engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facilities as specified under Schedule VI of the Companies
Act 2013, [the "Act™) and hence the provision of section 186 of the &ct related to loan/ guarantees given or securities provided
are not applicable to the Compamy. There are no investments made by the Company during the pericd.




PNC Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
i : U45203DL3016PTCI04T51

Haotes to The Anancial Statemants for tha Year Ended March 31, 2025

MNote 32 -Tha discloture is required by INDAS-15 * Employes Benefits™ are as under-

The Liability for Emplovee Gratulty |5 deteremined on acturiad valuation using Projected unit credit method.

The obligation are a5 under-

Tabbe 1: Member Data Statistics

= Far the yaar ending
g rtioulars
s i 31.03-2025 31.03.2024
1 |Number of Emplovees BHOD -
2 |MNormal Retirement Age 1] -
i |Average Age {m yri) 38.3% -
4 |Average Past Service [in yrs) 2.80 -
5 |Average Manthly Salary (in Rs) 14,028 3
& |Future Service (inyrs) 21.61 -
7 W'I!|!|1_I:Ed Average duration of D0 169 -
Tabla 2: Benafits Valued
1 |Eligibiliny Al permanent emplayee:
2 | Gratubly Salary Basic Monthly Salary
Service Completed years of senvice, service of B

3 maonths & above i rounded a5 one year

4 |Minimum westing period 5 Years of continuous service

- Mormal Retirernent Benefit 15/ 36*Service * Gratudty Salary, subject o

20, 00,000/«
5 |Death/Disability In Service Benefit Same a5 normal retiremant benmfit
Leaving Service Benefit H learves after 5 years of contnuous
7 seryice — Narmal Retiremeant Benefit
H leaves before 5 years of continuous

Tabla 3: Significant Actuarial Assumpticns

inrhmmﬂh
e FRaRaS 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 |Discount Rate 6.55% ERE L
1 |Expected Return on Plan Assets 0.00% 0.00%
3 (5alary Escalation Rate (p.a.] 5.00% D.00%
4 |Antrition Rate (p.a.) 15.00% OO0
& |Mortality Rate 100% of LALM 12-14 % of lALM D
e —— Mo eaphcit Hea explicit
2 m‘}“”ﬁf’ il asstmptions assumptions

ey




PHC Trivenl 5angam Highways Privata Limited
CIN - U45203DL A0 6PTCI0S4TSL

Motes to Tha Financial Statoments for the Year Ended March 31, 20025

Waluptien Miclasure Tables
Table 4: Change in Dafined Benafit Obligation . (¥ in Lakhs)
01-04-2024 Ta 01-04-2023 To
5.Me. Particulars m 025 3028
1 |Cefined berefit obligation at beginning of wear :
2 |Serice cost -
8. Currany service cost .M .
b Past service cost - vested 13.07 -
. Past service cost - unvested T
3 |Interest expansas -
4 |Cash flaws
a. Benefit payments from plan - =
b. Berefit payments from employer -
5 |Actwarial Gains and Losses .
B, Effect of changes in demographic assumptions .
b. Effect of changes in financial azsumptions =
¢ Effect of experience adjustments -
& |Tramsler bn /Owl
a. Tramsfer In =
b. Transfer out . -
7 |Defined benefit nhliﬁah’ﬂnal end of year E__a_] -
Bifurcation of the present value of obligation at the end of the year (¥ in Lakhs]
Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Current Obligatsons 4.15 .
Mon-Current Obligations 11.65 -
Total ﬂhl‘l!lﬂn 1551 -
Table 5: Change in Fair Vahee of Plan Assets
(¥ in Lalchs)
01-04-2024 To 01-08-2023 To
LNo, Particulars 31032025 S1.03.2054
1 |Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year - -
2 [Other Adjustmants - -
i |Charges and Taxes -
4 |Expected retumn on plan assets - -
§ JCashfiows
a. Tatal employer's contributson

{1} Employer contributions

(i) Ermpleryer direct benefil payments

b, Benefit paymants from plan assets

&, Benefit payrments from employer
Actuarial Gainz and Lossas on Plan Assats
B & Effect of changes in fimancial assumplion
b. Effect of experience adjustmants

7 [Transfer In /Ot

. Transfar In

b. Transfer out

B [Fair valuedT ek ts gt and of year

g Anﬁjﬁmh&‘&'  Agsiets
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PNC Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
CIN 2 UaST03DLI016PTCI0GTS]
Motes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Table &: Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet

(X in Lakhs)

01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 Ta
E.Na. Particulars 31-03-2005 03300k
1 |Defined banefit obligation 1581 -
2 |Fair value of plan assets -
3 |Fumded status - Deficit! | Surplus] 1581
4 |Effectof asset ceiling =
5 IMet defined benefit - (Liabilitylf Asset {1581}
Table 7: Net Poriodic bonefit cost recognized in the Profit and Lozs
[ In Lakhs)
01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 Ta
5.Na. Farticulars g 31022024
1 |Current Service Cost 274 -
2 |iaterest Expense - Obligation - .
3 |Interest [Income] - Plan Assois - -
4 [Past Service Cost 13.07 -
5 |Met Periodic benefit cost recognized inthe PEL 15.81
Table &: Re-measuramaent
[¥ in Lakhs)
D1-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
S.No. Farticulars 31L.03-2005 31032024
1 |Actuarkal [Galns)! Losses on oblgations = &
2 |Return on Plan Assets, excluding amount recogrized In the net interest expanse -
3 |Change in Asset Ceiling =
4 |Re-measwrament Cost) [Credit) for the year .
Table 9: Balance Sheet Reconcilllation
(¥ In Lakhs)
01-04-2024 To {1-04-2023 To
N = = Fltia Sy 31-03-2025 31-03-1024
1 |Net defined benefit {liability] asset at beginning of year =
2 |Unrecognised past service cost at the beginning of the year - -
3 |Expenseinthe P& L (15.81) -
4 |Total Remeasuremaents includad in OC - -
& |Employer's Total Centribution -
B |Nettransier
7 opvised sendce post at the end of the year - -
B zﬁl}.{ﬁt g:lqhﬁrﬁl] a<<et as ot end of year (15.81) B

&7.€°9
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PNC Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
CIN : U452030L200GPTCI04751
Motes 1o The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Takdelt: Expected Future Cashflows & Discontinuance Liahility

¥ in Lakhs)
i Expected amaloyer contributions Next year 2.74
2 |Dscontimuance liability 20.85
Expected Benafit
5. Ho Marurity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation Payment
1 2028 4431
i 2027 L.719
3 2028 245
4 2029 409
5 2030 182
6 2031 - 2036 4 BT
Tabde 11: Recogndstion of Past Service Cost
{¥ in Lakhs}
01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
e PArSciines 31-02-2025 21-03-2024
1 |Unrecognized Past Service Costf|Credit) as at the beginaing of the year - -
2 |Past Service Cost (Credit) for the ywear 13.07 .
3 |Past Service (Cost) Credit recognized during the year (13.07)
4 [Unrecognized Past Sarvice CostfiCredit] as at the end of year -
Tabde 12: Major Catogories of Plan Azsetsias a % of total Plan Assets)
i For the year ending
5.No. Aasat Categomes 311.03-2025 31-03-2025
1 |Government of India Securities 0.00% 0.00%
2 |Stare Government Securiies 0.0 L%
3 |High Quality Corporate Bonds 0. 0olri 0.00%
4 |Equity shases of Bsted companies 0.0 [LD0%
5 |Property .00 0005
& |5pecial Deposit Schema 0.00% 0.00%
7 Funds managed by Insurer 0. D DL0O%
8 |Gthers (o specify) 0.0 0.00%
9 |Total 0.00% 0.00%
Table 13: Sensitivity of Defined Benefit Obligation {DBO) to key assumptiong (% in Lakhs)

The financial resulis are sensithee o the actuarial assumptions. The changes to the Defined Benefit Obligations for increase and

disgrease (iom assumed salary escalation, withdrawal and discount rates sre gheen belo:

5.Mo. Scenario DEO Varlation
1 |Under Base Scenadio 1581 DuD0
1 |Salary Increase Rate - Plus 100 Basis Points 16.26 2055
31 |5alary Increase Rate - Minus 100 Basis Polnts 15.38 -2.71%
4  |Withdrawal Rate - Pug 300 Badis Points 15,74 40,39%
5 |Withdrawal Rate - Minus 100 Basls Points 1587 035
6 |Dizcount R:MEHJ Basis Points 15.28 3,305
7 nlnuunpﬂ#gﬂ@rghm Basis Points 16.28 101%
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PHC Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
CIN : U452030L2016FTC304751

Motes io The Financial Statemants for the Year Ended Manch 31, 202%

Tahie 14: Rizsk Exposure

Proviion of 8 defined benefit scheme poses certain risks a5 companies take on unceriain long term obligation: te make future penson
paymenis as folliows:

Liabitity Risks

Azzet-Liability Mesmatch Risk

Risk If there is @ mismatch In the duration
of the assets relative to tha labilities. By
matching duration with the defined
benefic labllities, the company Is
swecessfully able to neutrafize valiation
swings caused Gy Mterest  rate
moverments. Hence  COMpanies  ane
encouraged to  adopt  asset-labilicg
management,

|Discount Rate Risk

Varistions in the discount rate used o
compute the present value of the liablities
may seem samall, but in practice can have a
significant impact on the defined banefit
liabilities.

Futuire Salary Escalation and Inflation Risk -

Since price inflation and salary growth ane
linked economically, they are combined
for disclosure purposes. Rising salaries will
often result in higher future defined
benefit payments resulting in & higher
present walue of lishilities especially
uneagerted calary increases provided at
management’s discretion may lead 1o
estimation upcertainties increasing this
risk.

Unfunded Plan Risk

E'EEI!-I'I

This represents unmanaged risk and a growing liability. There is an inherent risk here that the company may default on paying
ﬁ!ﬂﬁ&u{mmn{ﬁ Funiding the pdan remawes volatility from the balance sheet and better manages defined

n:-ugh n'bq'ﬂi.ed Teturns
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PMC Triven! Sangam Highways Private Limited
CIN = UaSH0IDLZDIEPTCI0ATEY

Motes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Mote 33 : The disclosure |5 reguired by INDAS-19 "Employes Benefits” are as under-

The lEability for Employee Leave Plan is detereminded on acturial valuation weing Projected wnit eredit method.

Table 1: Member Data Statistics
For the year end
A Sl 31032025 :1-:?.-1014
| Mumber of Employees E0 -
2 |Wormal Retirement Age &0 i
3 |Average Age [in yrs) 38.33 -
4 |Average Maonthly Encashment Salary 14.028 -
5  |Total Leave balance [In days) 1,036 -
6 |Weighted Average duration of DED 3.69 -
Table 2: Benefits Valued
1 |Typeof Plan Other Long Term Benefits
F Marmal Ratirement Age &0
3 Salary hor calculation of leave encashment Basic
4 Salary for cabculation of leave availment Mot Used
5 |Typeof leave valued Privilege Leawe
& |Cap on leave accumulation A5 days
7 |Emcacshment during employment Not Allowed
& Days in & manth {for calculations) 30 days
8 Normal Retirement Benefit 1/30 x salary x number of unused leave
10 |Beath in Service Benefit Same as normal retiremeant
11  [Leaving Service Benefit Same as normal retirement
12 |Availment Pattern MA
13 |Encashment in service - Pattemn A
Table 3: Signiflcant Actuarial Assumptions
For the year end
P Farticn 31.03.2025 31:3-:&14
i Discount Rate B.55% 0,003
] Expected Return on Plan Assets 0.00% 0,00
3 Salary Escalation Rate (p.a_) £ 005 0. 00
4 Artrition Rate (p.a.) 25,005 0.00%
5 Mortality Rate g Ii‘f:" RO HA
6 |Disabifity Rite No explicit A




PNC Triveni 5angam Highways Private Limited
CIM = U45203D0L2006PTCI0AT51

Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Valuatien Disclasure Tables
Table 4: in Definad Benafit Obligation [T in Lakhs)
01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
S i o 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 |Defined benefit obligation at beginning of wear - -
2 Service cost =
&, Currenl servios cast 452 =
b. Past senvice cost - vested -
. Past service cost - urvested ;
3 |Inferest expenses - <
4  |Cash flows -
a. Benefit payments fram plan .
b. Banefit payments from employer E =
5  |Actuarial Gains and Losses -
. Efffiect of changes in demographic assumptions -
b, Effect of changes in financial assumptions - -
c. Effect of experience adjustments - -
6 |Transfer in [Out .
& Transfer in -
b, Transfer out -
7 Defined benefit obligation at end of year 4,52
Bifurcation of the present value of obligation at the end of the year
{% In Lakhis)
Partlculars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Current Oiigations 1.30
Man-Current Obligations 1,22 -
Tatal Obkgatian 4.52
Table 5: Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 Ta
S IPENIE 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 |Falrvalue of plan assets at beginning of vear .
2 |Other Adjustments =
3 Charpes and Taxes - =
4 {Espected return on plan assets a
5 Cashilows
a, Total employer's contribution
{i] Emgloyer contributions .

{ii) Employer direct benefit payments
b. Benefit payments from plan assets
. Banafit payments from employer

b Effect of experlence adjustments

7 Transfer In [Out

a. Transfer In

b. Tramsfer out

B |Fair valee of plan assets at end of year
5 |Actual F;I:furrl On Plan Assets

Actuarial Gaing and Losses on Plan Assets
&  |a Effect of changes in financial assumptions

O e




PHNC Triveni Sangam Highways Private Limited
CIM = UaS20300L 201 6PTC2DATSL
Notes to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Table &: Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet

{% In Lakhs)
01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
A e 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
1 |Defined benefit obligation 457 .
2 |Fair vabue of plan assets =
3 |Funded status - Deficit/ [Surplus) 4,52
4 Actuarial (Galns) and Losses - on Obdigations - .
5  |Actuarial Gains and (Losses] - on Plan Assets - -
& Met defined benefit - [Liability)f Asset {#4.52
Table T: Net Periodic benafit cost recognized in tha Profit and Loss
(¥ In Lakhs)
01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
S.Mo. For the year 31.03-2025 31.03.2004
1 Current Sarvice Cost 452 -
2  |Interest Expense - Oblgation -
3 |interest {Income] - Plan Assets -
4 Past Service Cost -
5 Actuarial (Gains) and Losses - on Obligations - -
G Actuarial Galns and (Losses)] - on Plan Assets - -
7 |Met Periodic benefit cost recognized inthe P & L 4.52 =
Table 8: Balance Sheet Reconcilliation
{¥ In Lakhs)
£ No. For the yaar 01-04-2024 To 01-04-2023 To
31-03-2025 31-03-2024
i Met deflined benefit [liability] asset at beginning of year - -
2  |Expense In the PE L (4.52] -
i |Employer's Total Contribution - -
4  |Met transfer . -
5  |Met defined benefit [lability] asset as at end of year (4.52] -
Table 9: Expected Future Cachflows & Discontinuance Liability
¥ in Lakhs)
1 Expected employer contributions Mext year 4.52 |
Enpected Benefit
5.Mo Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation Bt
1 1025 1.39
z 2028 0.96
| 2027 0.71
4 2028 .57
5 1029 o.dd
6 2030 - 2034 1.15
7 beyond 2034 038

e
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PME Trivenl Sangam Highways Privata Limitod
CIN ! LMSI03DLZ01EPTCI0NTSL
Mates to The Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2025

Table 10: Major Categories of Plan Assets{as a % of total Plan Assats)

For the year ending
0. e 31.03-2025 31-03-2024
1 Government of Indla Securities 0.0 0.00%
?  Siate Gowernment Securities 0.00% 0.00%
3 High Quality Corporate Bonds 000K 0.00%
4 Eguity shares of listed companias 0.00r% 0. 00%
5 Property 0.0Cr% 0L00%
6  Special Deposit Scheme 0.00% 0.00%
7 Funds managed by Insurer 0.00% QL00%
B Ohers (io specify) 0008 0L.00%
§ Total 1,00 i0L.00%
Table 11; Sensitivity of Defined Benefit Obligation [DBO) to key assumptions (¥ in Lakhs)

The financial results are sensitive o the actusrial assumplions, The chenges to the Defined Benefit Obligations for increase

S.Mo. Scemario DBO Varlation
1 Under Base Soenario 4.52 0L00%
2 Salary Increase Rate - Plus 100 Basds Points 4.63 2.49%
3 Salary Increase Rate - Minus 100 Basls Polnts 4.41 -2 38%
4 Withdrawal Rate = Plus 100 Bask Points 4,53 0.17%
5 Withdrawal Rate - Minus 100 Basis Poinis #.51 -0.15%
B |Discount Rate - Plus 100 Basks Points 4.40 -1.78%
7 I:I_ucﬁ'l'!‘hte Minus 100 Basis Points 4,68 2.97%
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PH Trivenl Sangam Highways Private Limited
CIN LS 3D I01 TPTC32TETE
Motes to The Anancal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2035

Mote 34: Ratios
The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024
Year ended
&r., No. Particulars March 31, | March 31, | Variances | Explanation regarding
1025 IrinrL ] k] variance W +15%
1 !cmuum {tmes) (Current assets divided by current labilities) 155 0,64 142.16] n:: :':" CHEN,
2 |Debt-Equity Ratio [times)
{Larg-term borrowings, Shoet-term borrowings and current maturities of long term
borowings excuding ursecured borrawing taken and cutstanding from Witimate 354 394 | (1006}  WNetApplicable
holding company(ie. PHC Infratech Umited) divided by totad equity induding
[hse 10 inCraase in
{Profit before Imterest, Tax and Cxceptional item divided by Interest Expenses a7z 1.34 (AE.15]]  IMDErest income on
iogether with principal M*ﬂm Bormowings) oiiscidzmioatesich
4 |Eeturn an Dquity Ratie %) Duie ta imcrease in
(Profi after Tax divided by Total Eguity, totad eguity slse mcudes wniscured kan .63 5.7l 54,06 | Interest income on
taken from wiimate hoiding comparry iLe. from PNC Infrateech Limited) senvice concession,
5 |inventony Turnowver Rathe (mes)
{Cost of Goods sold divided by Average inventory| .
Cost of Goods sald = Cost of materials consumed + Contract Pald + Construction e cp ot Nl
. Receivables Turnover Ratio (times) e Due to decrease in
(Rewanue from aperation divided by Average Trade Receivable including service 0.14 038 | e3AS) e
i 1
7 |Trade Payables Turnover Ratlo {times) 0.40 175| (7725 Ouetodecreasein
(Purchase divided by Swerage Trade payablas) Trade Payable
B |Mat Capital Turneser Ratis {times) B
{Rewenue from operation divided by working capitaliworking caoitsl refers o nes P | (LE3)| (206171 A
Bue i Increase n
8  [Met Profit Ratio (M) 1,49 1360 {Ga.33)| Inierestincorne on
{Prodit afier Tay dluldeﬂ_ll flewrmelrng Eigen} Service Concession,
D fo Increase in
10 |Return on Capital employed (%) 1014 1115 {8.08)| interest mcome on
[EBITDA divided by Capital amployed (capital emploved arved after reduding current Lervce Concession.
Due Lo increase in
11 |Return on Investmant (%) 055 203 | (7283} interestincome on
{Prafit atter tax/Total Assets) Bl P
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